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Addendum No. 1 
 

 
Date: July 1, 2014  
 
To:  Contractors  
 
From: John Harrington – Project Manager, DFCM 
 
Reference: Multiple Solar PV Facilities at Camp Williams, Draper HQ, West Jordan, 

Blanding, and St. George 
  Utah National Guard  
  DFCM Project No.  14261480 
 
Subject: Addendum No. 1 
 
Pages Addendum Cover Sheet 1 page 
 General Items 33 pages 
 Total 34 pages 
  
 
Note: This Addendum shall be included as part of the Contract Documents. Items in this 
Addendum apply to all drawings and specification sections whether referenced or not involving 
the portion of the work added, deleted, modified, or otherwise addressed in the Addendum. 
Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Bid Form. Failure to do so 
may subject the Bidder to Disqualification.   
 
 
1.1 SCHEDULE CHANGES:  There are no Project Schedule changes. 
 
 
 
1.2  GENERAL ITEMS:  Please see the attached documents. 
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Addendum No. 1 

Date:    July 1, 2014 
To:    Design/Build Teams 
From:    John Harrington - Project Manager 
Reference:   MULTIPLE SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC FACILITIES 

  

 
Total Pages:         7 pages 
Total No Download Documents including this Addendum:  13 documents 
 
Questions and Answers as a result of Mandatory Site visits on June 24 and 25, 2014 

 

Camp Williams  

 Question Answer 
1 The new MV conduit and trenching from 

north to south will have manholes at 600 
feet according to the briefing.  Can you 
locate the relevant manholes on a map? 

Drawings are included for download (“Camp 
Williams Infra Project.pdf”) 

2 Please verify the enclosed Jacobs Canal is 
under the gravel road? 

The enclosed Jacobs Canal is under the gravel road. 

3 If we can construct the system with 
minimal clearing, grubbing and grading, 
can we include this as part of our erosion 
and weed control solution?  It is possible to 
minimize soil disturbance and minimize 
erosion in the out years. 

For the purpose of the bidding, please assume that 
the specification for the ground underneath the 
array is as follows: Include a weed barrier that is to 
be pinned, with a minimum of 3” gravel (¾” 
crushed) covering the entire surface area. For the 
barrier, we request a 20 year (4.1 oz) woven 
polypropylene (or equal), needle punched 
landscape fabric. Clearing, grubbing and grading is 
the responsibility of the contractor. 

4 Can we use gutters in lieu of other erosion 
control measures? 

No. Gutters may be included but a weed barrier and 
gravel covering are still required. 

5 Please verify work includes pulling 
approx. 2000’ MV conductors from the PV 
Arrays to the electrical building and 
landing on existing switchgear 

Work includes pulling approx. 2000’ MV 
conductors from the PV Arrays to the electrical 
building and landing on existing switchgear. 

6 Can the fencing for the South West and the 
Series 9000 ground mounts be combined? 

Yes 

7 Location of the manhole where we tie-in? 
Can a revised aerial site map be provided 
with the manhole and approx. distance to 
man hole from the South, West, 9000 

Please refer to the included drawings (such as 
Camp Williams Infra Project.pdf). 
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series arrays  

8 Where is the spec for the encasement of 
the pipe under the canal? 

Please assume that electrical conduit will need to 
go underneath the canal encasement with a 
minimum distance of three feet or as applicable by 
Code. The boring under the canal will have to have 
a casement installed that contains the conduit. The 
system will need to be engineered, signed and 
stamped. 

9 What size of pipe/conduit and how many 
are going to be furnished and approx. 
footages? 

Please refer to the attached drawings (such as 
Camp Williams Infra Project.pdf) and estimates 
provided in the RFP document and use general 
Code compliant calculations for wire and conduit 
sizing.  

10 Are the conduits going to be stubbed into 
the existing gear or into the building only? 

The solar should run back at 12470 volt (dedicated 
new wire) to avoid large voltage drop, over a 
distance of approximately 2,000 feet, and intertie 
with the medium voltage breakers and SCADA 
intertie logic.   

11 Are the remaining geo reports going to be 
conducted by the customer or the 
contractor 

By the contractor 

12 What is the set back from the Jacobs Canal 
center line? 

Please use the following for your bid submittal: 1 
rod to the west and 2 rods from the east 

13 Is Camp Williams separately metered for 
each of the 4 sites or will they be metered 
together? 

Separate meters are required (4# total). 
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Draper 

1 What are the downwash wind requirements 
for the Draper carports? 

For the purpose of the bid, please assume there is 
no downwash wind that affects the structural load 
calculations of the solar canopies. 

2 Would a bridging type of canopy be 
acceptable as opposed to a T type 
cantilever? 

Please assume T-type for the purpose of the 
bidding process. 

3 Please verify that pavement repairs for 
trenching to the electrical point of 
connection will require the affected area to 
be re-oiled or sealed to make it 
aesthetically pleasing 

The pavement repairs for trenching to the electrical 
point of connection will require the affected area to 
be re-oiled or sealed to make it aesthetically 
pleasing. 

4 Is there an existing conduit for parking lot 
lights and is it suitable for pulling the 
conductors from the inverter to the electric 
disconnect? 

Assume there is no existing conduit for lights or 
conductors from the inverter. 

5 Once selected as contractor can we be 
timed to come in trench, lay lines in before 
paving occurs over warehouse parking lot? 

Yes, depending on the specific timing of the paving 
project, it may be possible to make 
accommodations for trenching and conduit. 

6 Once trenching is requested will Conduit 
be supplied as in the case of Camp 
Williams, if so what type and size of 
spec’d pipe would be supplied? 

No, there is no budget allowance for conduit in the 
Draper paving project. Conduit at Draper is the 
contractor’s responsibility.  

 

 

West Jordan: 

1 Can we build in the retention basin at this 
site?  This was indicated in the RFQ but 
was not clear on the site walk. 

Yes, the retention basin is a possible alternate. 

2 The hangar has lightening terminals but the 
armory did not.  Do either (or both) 
buildings require lightening protection on 
the PV system? 

Please assume that no changes need to be made to 
the existing building lightning arresters (or lack 
there-of). The Solar system will need to comply 
with the applicable Code standards with respect to 
lightning protection. 

3 Please verify the hangar roof is considered 
acceptable for a ballasted system? 

The hangar roof is considered acceptable for a 
ballasted system. A structural opinion letter on this 
matter is included as an attachment (“Armory 
Letter of Recommendation.pdf”). 

4 Due to proximity to the airfield, are there 
additional helicopter downwash 
requirements for the hangar, armory or 
ground systems in the vicinity? 

Please assume for the West Jordan PV systems, 
there are no additional helicopter downwash 
requirements for the hangar, armory or ground 
systems in the vicinity. 

5 Please verify that a double cantilever 
carport is acceptable in the hangar parking 

Please assume single cantilever for the purpose of 
bidding on this project. 
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lot? 
6 Please verify the 85kW carport can be 

about 80 - 88 kW? 
The 85kW carport can be about 80 - 88 kW. 

7 Will UNG allow lawn & sprinkling to be 
removed for Ground array system, gravel 
road base added at completion? 

Yes. 

8 If DFCM roofing manager is sensitive to 
ballasted systems, can we get an opinion 
that YES it is needed, or a not required 
decision. 

Ballasted, or hybrid ballasted / linked, low profile 
racking systems are acceptable. 

9 Are roof warranty documents available? See attached documents for download: 
 
hangar roof warranty.pdf 
west jordan armory roof warranty.pdf 

10 What is the spec for ground treatment 
underneath ground mount? 

Please include a weed barrier / blanket and gravel 
covering for underneath the array. The weed barrier 
is to be pinned and the gravel is to be ¾” crushed 
with a minimum of 3” of cover over the entire 
surface area. 

11 Please address any flight path and or 
reflective surface issues 

These were addressed and cleared and deemed not 
to be of influence on the bid. 

12 Should safety walk pathways on the hangar 
be included? 

Please include it as a line item of bid alternate if 
included in your proposal. 

13 Are design plans and time line for the 
Armory building refurbishment available? 

Not at this time 

14 Can you identify which antennas will 
remain on the armory roof?  There are 
several around the middle of the building. 

All antennas will remain in place. 

 

 

St George: 

Please note, after careful deliberation, the battery emergency back-up requirement for St George no 
longer applies. For St George, we are now asking for a single bid comprising a 200 kW Ground Mount 
facility that is net metered, without battery backup.  

Please note most of the questions below are no longer relevant. 

 

1 Please verify that even though 1, 2 or 3 
solutions will be accepted, one solution 
must include a 200kW PV system 

We are now asking for one single solution, 200 kW 
PV system with grid connected inverter(s). 

2 Please verify the “Storage Room” adjacent 
to the Electrical Room is the proposed 

N/A 
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space for locating the batteries 
3 It was mentioned the storage solution 

should be scalable to allow for more on-
site storage or a later gen-set installation.  
However, it seems this requirement is for 
the Data Center building, which is not 
included in the storage solution.  This 
sounds like a micro-grid, not just a 
glorified UPS.  Is it your intent the design 
should have the capability to interact / 
connect to a future micro-grid solution? 

N/A 

4 Can we propose an alternate solution that 
assumes a single point of connection for 
the site, with a single site meter on the MV 
side of the transformers? 

Yes, it is acceptable to propose an alternate 
solution that assumes a single point of connection 
for the site, with a single site meter on the MV side 
of the transformers. 

5 Can we get the rate schedule for each 
meter?  It is not on the provided utility bills 

The utility bills included in the RFP, is all that is 
available at this time.  

6 Does Dixie power allow net metering? A special exception was made per a Dixie 
Escalante Board decision, which allow for a single 
occurrence of a 200 kW net metered PV facility at 
this particular site. 

7 Are there USG security clearance 
requirements to work on or around or to 
see the building drawings for the Data 
Center? For example “Secret” clearance, 
not just the usual want and warrants 
checks. 

No special clearance is required other than the 
usual criminal background checks as discussed 
during the site meeting. 

8 Batteries are comparably very expensive 
therefore some specifications would help. 
Can you please provide battery 
specifications? 

N/A 

9 What is the spec for ground treatment 
underneath ground mount 

Please include a weed barrier / blanket and gravel 
covering for underneath the array. The weed barrier 
is to be pinned and the gravel is to be ¾” crushed 
with a minimum of 3” of cover over the entire 
surface area. 

 

 

General Questions 

1 The minimum warranty is 5 years.  Will a 
longer warranty, say 10 years, be regarded 
more favorably?  

Yes. A 10 year workmanship warranty could be 
included as an alternate or an added line item. 

2 If there are options the contractors see as 
cost savings to the UTNG, can they bid it 
that way? 

Yes. In general, if not adhering to the spec as 
provided in the RFP document and appendices, 
please clearly mark additions or changes as either a 
bid alternate or a separate line item. 

3 SCADA – can you provide the For security reasons we are unable to post the 
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specifications for the SCADA, either what 
we are to connect to, or the USACE 
specification that is required? 

SCADA spec. Please make an allowance of $7,500 
for each of the nine arrays to cover the cost of a 
meter, signal wiring, PLC modifications (if 
required) and SCADA programming changes. 

4 Is network certification required for the 
monitoring and meters? 

Yes 

5 Do the inverters, SCADA and monitoring 
need to be interactive with other generators 
on sites in order to provide an off grid 
capability? 

No 

6 Page 5 of the RFQ says the modules and 
inverters need to be American Made.  This 
has a very specific meaning with the USG 
(see the FTC site at 
http://business.ftc.gov/documents/bus03-
complying-made-usa-standard).  Can you 
specify a standard?  Manufacturers know 
what is legal, so their labeling may be 
adequate for your needs. 

The materials need not be ‘ARRA’ compliant or 
strictly adhere to the guidelines referenced on the 
Federal Trade Commission (FTC) website.  There 
are no official ‘country of origin’ restrictions 
adhered to the funding source, however there is a 
strong preference that the modules and inverters are 
substantially domestically sourced and under 
warranty with a domestic company. Vendors are 
reminded that bid alternatives, or separate line 
items for alternate components or design proposals, 
are permitted.  

7 Please verify aluminum conductors are not 
allowed 

Aluminum conductors are not allowed. 

8 Does the prime require a current Utah 
license to bid, or will it be acceptable to 
have a current license prior to award?  

The prime requires a current Utah license to bid. 

9 Are 6 foot fences acceptable?  Do you 
require slats?  Do you require triple strand 
barb wire or concertina on top? 

The fencing needs to comply with the appropriate 
Electrical and other Code requirements. No other 
special specification will be imposed on the 
fencing. 

10 Are hose bibs and water required to the 
arrays for washing?  

Hose bibs should be included in the bid for the 
Blanding, St George and West Jordan locations, 
where it can be assumed that a water main intercept 
is less than 200 ft distance from the hose bib. A 
minimum 1” hose connection should be assumed. 
At Camp Williams, please assume that water 
supply will be included in the infra-structure 
project. 

11 Will you contract under NEC 2011 or 2014 
since the switch will occur prior to award? 

Vendor is required to verify the applicable Code 
version at the time of permit submittal. There is no 
certainty that 2014 NEC will be approved by the 
legislature this year. 

12 Does any (or all) PV systems require 
lightening protection? 

All Solar PV systems will need to comply with the 
applicable Code standards with respect to lightning 
protection. 

13 Do you require galvanized, powder coated 
or painted carport structures? 

Powder coated. 

16 Do the carports require 3 foot bollards 
around the posts? 

The following spec for the car canopies is given for 
guidance: 
 

http://business.ftc.gov/documents/bus03-complying-made-usa-standard
http://business.ftc.gov/documents/bus03-complying-made-usa-standard
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a) Posts to be bedded in sonotube/concrete bollards 
to 24" 
b) Minimum clearances - 9' leading edge, 13' 
elevated edge 
 c) Wiring Treatments: no visible wires, all wires to 
be in conduit 
d) Metal to be Powder-Coated 
e) Coating Color Preference dark bronze in 
concurrence with outside building color trim  
 f) Perimeter/Edge Trim Treatment – not required 
g) LED under lighting is required 
h) Snow/ice melt drip control/mitigation – not 
required 
i) Anti bird nesting, under sheeting, downspouts 
and gutters: not required 
 

17 What is the minimum fire lane widths?  Is 
there a setback requirement at Draper to 
allow for vehicle movement around the 
building? 

Please use the existing parking spaces as guidance. 
Industry standards are to be applied with respect to 
vehicle movement, setback and fire lanes. 

18 Please provide a single line for each site See attached documents for download: 
 
Camp Williams one-line.pfd 
Draper One-line.pdf 
1991_WJ_Armory_One_Line.pdf 
1993-Blanding_One_Line.pdf 
1994 Saint George Armory_One_Line.pdf 
 

19 Can you please provide a formal solar 
module specification? 

Please adhere to the specification as provided in the 
RFP document and its exhibits.  

20 Where is the generator power connected 
into the service entrance for sites that have 
secondary systems? Are there subpanels? 
Please include one lines. 

Please refer to the attached one-line diagrams, 
where available and appropriate. 

21 Can you please provide utility corridor 
specifications for each site 

The utility corridor document is not deemed 
suitable for the purpose of this bidding process. 
Please adhere to general applicable Electrical Code 
requirements. 

22 Is there a prevailing wage standard on this 
project? 

No 

23 Are all permitting and submittal docs to go 
through DFCM? 

Yes  

24 Is there a page limit on response docs? There is no prescribed page limit but vendors are 
advised to be economical with their Responses. 

25 Who is responsible for the fencing? The contractor 
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June 3, 2014 

 

Maud de Bel 

BacGen 

4015 Beach Drive SW 

Seattle, WA 98116 

 

Ref: Utah National Guard; West Jordan, Utah 

Subject: Solar Panel Roof Evaluation 

 

Ms. de Bel, 

 

In response to your request, BHB Consulting Engineers has performed a structural 

evaluation of the roof of the Utah National Guard armory building for the addition of 

the proposed solar panel units.   

 

We performed a site visit and walked the roof to get a good idea of the types of loads 

are currently being imposed on the roof structure.  We were also able to obtain a joist 

tag from the building, which enabled us to get the original shop drawings and 

associated calculations for the original construction of the roof.  These allowed us to 

corroborate our assumptions of expected loads. 

 

From our observations of the building, we were able to calculate the actual dead load 

of waterproofing membrane, metal roof deck, joists/girders, and mechanical 

equipment to be 12 psf.  With an allowance of 3 psf for miscellaneous items and the 31 

psf snow load, this gives an actual total load of 46 psf.   

 

All of the proposed locations for the solar panels, with the exception of one bay, have 

ample available capacity based on these loads.  The westernmost bay on the south 

end of the building (a 183’-0” x 28’-1” rectangular area) is the area that doesn’t have 

capacity to support the approximately 5 psf of added weight for the solar panels.  The 

location of this bay can be seen in the aerial image attached, which outlines the 

acceptable locations in green and outlines the unacceptable areas in red. 

 

The calculations of the loads and capacity of the roof are attached, and copies of the 

drawings can be provided if necessary. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Gerald Mckenzie, SE 

BHB Consulting Engineers, P.C. 
6/3/14
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POWER SITE PLAN
AREA 'R' PHASE 2

GENERAL NOTES
A. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING

CONDITIONS, MATERIALS, FINISHES, AND
DIMENSIONS BEFORE AND AFTER DEMOLITION

B. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE THAT ALL SIDEWALKS
AND ROADS OUTSIDE OF CONSTRUCTION AREA
ARE KEPT CLEAN AND CLEAR OF DEBRIS AND
OBSTRUCTIONS AT ALL TIMES.

C. PROTECT ALL ITEMS TO REMAIN FROM DAMAGE.
D. COORDINATE ALL PLANNED POWER OUTAGES

WITH  BASE OPERATIONS PRIOR TO
DISCONNECTING.

E. COORDINATE DEMOLITION OF OVERHEAD LINES
AND   CONSTRUCTION OF UNDERGROUND SYSTEM
TO MINIMIZE DOWN TIME.

F. ALL PRIMARY VOLTAGE CONDUIT TO BE ENCASED
IN  CONCRETE AT A MINIMUM OF 36 IN. BELOW
GRADE WITH MAGNETIC RIBBON AT 12" BELOW
GRADE. RUN DEEPER THAN 36" IN THE EVENT OF A
CONFLICTING CROSSING.

G. ALL SECONDARY VOLTAGE CONDUIT TO BE
ENCASED IN CONCRETE AT A MINIMUM OF 24 IN.
BELOW GRADE UNLESS RUNNING PARALLEL WITH
THE PRIMARY VOLTAGE CONDUIT, THEN RUN THE
SECONDARY VOLTAGE CONDUIT IN THE SAME
CONCRETE DUCTBANK AS THE PRIMARY. SEE

ELECTRICAL DETAILS.

KEYED NOTES
RUN CONDUITS AND PROVIDE PULL ROPE.
CONDUCTORS TO BE PROVIDED IN FUTURE.
PLACE BOLLARDS TO PROTECT EQUIPMENT
FROM DAMAGE IN HIGH TRAFFIC AREAS. SEE
DETAILS 6, 7, AND 8 ON SHEET EX303.1 FOR
INSTALLATION AND PLACEMENT.
STUB UP SPARE CONDUITS 4" ABOVE GRADE.
PROVIDE PULL ROPE AND CAP.
RUN CONDUITS AND PROVIDE PULL ROPE IN
BASE BID. CONDUCTORS TO BE PROVIDED IN
ALTERNATE #2.
PROVIDE AN ADDITIONAL 5"C IN DUCTBANK FOR
FUTURE SOLAR AS PART OF ALTERNATE #1, FOR
A TOTAL OF (4)5"C +(1) 1"C IN THE DUCTBANK.

LOCATE AND AVOID GENERATOR FEEDER AND
AUXILLIARY CONTROLS, AND CIRCUITS.

COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION OF SWITCH WITH
GATE ACCESS AND FUTURE SOLAR ARRAY.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

( IN FEET )HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.
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NEW ONE-LINE DIAGRAM
PHASE 2

FEEDER SCHEDULE SYMBOL

CONDUIT & WIRE SIZE

20A 0.75"C 3#12

20B 0.75"C 4#12

20C

0.75"C 3#12, 1#12 GRD

20D

0.75"C 4#12, 1#12 GRD

20E

0.75"C 4#12, 1#12 GRD, 1#12 ISOLATED GRD

30A 0.75"C 3#10

30B 0.75"C 4#10

30C

0.75"C 3#10, 1#10 GRD

30D

0.75"C 4#10, 1#10 GRD

30E

0.75"C 4#10, 1#10 GRD, 1#10 ISOLATED GRD

40A 0.75"C 3#8

40B 0.75"C 4#8

40C

0.75"C 3#8, 1#10 GRD

40D

0.75"C 4#8, 1#10 GRD

40E

0.75"C 4#8, 1#10 GRD, 1#10 ISOLATED GRD

60A 0.75"C 3#6

60B 0.75"C 4#6

60C

0.75"C 3#6, 1#10 GRD

60D

1"C 4#6, 1#10 GRD

60E

1"C 4#6, 1#10 GRD, 1#10 ISOLATED GRD

70A 1"C 3#4

70B 1"C 4#4

70C

1"C 3#4, 1#8 GRD

70D

1.25"C 4#4, 1#8 GRD

70E

1.25"C 4#4, 1#8 GRD, 1#8 ISOLATED GRD

80A 1"C 3#3

80B 1.25"C 4#3

80C

1.25"C 3#3, 1#8 GRD

80D

1.25"C 4#3, 1#8 GRD

80E

1.25"C 4#3, 1#8 GRD, 1#8 ISOLATED GRD

100A 1"C 3#2

100B 1.25"C 4#2

100C

1.25"C 3#2, 1#8 GRD

100D

1.25"C 4#2, 1#8 GRD

100E

1.25"C 4#2, 1#8 GRD, 1#8 ISOLATED GRD

100XA

2"C 1#2 15KV EPR AL, 1#2 CU THWN NEUTRAL

100XC

3"C 3#2 15KV EPR AL, 1#2 CU THWN NEUTRAL

125A 1.25"C 3#1

125B 1.5"C 4#1

125C

1.5"C 3#1, 1#6 GRD

125D

2"C 4#1, 1#6 GRD

125E

2"C 4#1, 1#6 GRD, 1#6 ISOLATED GRD

150A 1.5C" 3#1/0

150B 2"C 4#1/0

150C

2"C 3#1/0, 1#6 GRD

150D

2"C 4#1/0, 1#6 GRD

150E

2"C 4#1/0, 1#6 GRD, 1#6 ISOLATED GRD

175A 1.5"C 3#2/0

175B 2"C 4#2/0

175C

2"C 3#2/0, 1#6 GRD

175D

2"C 4#2/0, 1#6 GRD

175E

2"C 4#2/0, 1#6 GRD, 1#6 ISOLATED GRD

200A 2"C 3#3/0

200B 2"C 4#3/0

200C

2"C 3#3/0, 1#6 GRD

200D

2.5"C 4#3/0, 1#6 GRD

200E

2.5"C 4#3/0, 1#6 GRD, 1#6 ISOLATED GRD

225A 2"C 3#4/0

225B 2.5"C 4#4/0

225C

2.5"C 3#4/0, 1#4 GRD

225D

2.5"C 4#4/0, 1#4 GRD

225E

2.5"C 4#4/0, 1#4 GRD, 1#4 ISOLATED GRD

250A 2.5"C 3#250KCM

250B 2.5"C 4#250KCM

250C

2.5"C 3#250KCM, 1#4 GRD

250D

3"C 4#250KCM, 1#4 GRD

250E

3"C 4#250KCM, 1#4 GRD, 1#4 ISOLATED GRD

300XL

5"C 3#350KCM 15 KV EPR AL, 1#4/0 CU THWN

NEUTRAL



GRADE

MAGNETIC RIBBON

1 1/2"

1 1/2"

3'

1'

CONCRETE
CUP

EXISTING 
SG601 

RTU

EXISTING 
800 KW

CONTROL
TO WIND TURBINES

NEW SWITCHGEAR GMI
LOWER GARRISON

SEL751 SEL351 SEL351
SEL751

SWITCHGEAR SGMZ
UPPWER GARRISON

(EXISTING)

TO FUTURE SOLARTO UTILITY

BREAKER STATUS, OPEN, CLOSE (E)

MODBUS
(E)

BREAKER STATUS, OPEN, CLOSE

MODBUS
RS-485

BELDON 3109A

GENERATOR STATUS,
START/STOP (E)

MICROGRID CONTROL PANEL
MTU (EXISTING)

SEQUENCE OF OPERATION
1. PLC CONTROLS - MONITORS, INCOMING WIND, GENERATOR, UTILITY AND SOLAR POWER.
2. LOAD ADD OR LOAD SHED TO MAINTAIN RELIABLE POWER.
3. CAMP WILL PURSUE FUTURE NET METERING AGREEMENT AS PART OF SOLAR PROJECT.

NOTE: ORIGINAL CONTACT FOR MICROGRID CONTROL PANEL IS ICTECK IGOR KOVALENKO,
801-571-6740

TO ETHERNET/SCADA PC

MOBUS I/O CHART
-   RELAY ALARM STATUS
-   BREAKER SLOSED STATUS
-   BREAKER TRIPPED STATUS
-   VOLTAGE VALUE
-   CURRENT VALUE

BREAKER OPEN OUTPUT
BREAKER CLOSED OUTPUT

NEW DC

NEW DC/AC CONVERTER

12"

4" BOLLARD TYPICAL EACH SIDE
PLACE AS SHOWN. BOLLARD MUST NOT
INTERFERE WITH EQUIPMENT OPERATION
OR MAINTENANCE

PANEL/DISCONNECT

UNISTRUT RACK

MEDIUM VOLTAGE
SWITCH

GRADE

PRE-CAST SWITCH
PAD VAULT

MIN. 3" CONCRETE ON SIDES.
MAX. 10' BETWEEN SPACERS.

CONDUITS TO BE SPACED 2" APART.

MAIN CIRCUIT
BREAKER/SWITCH

GROUND BUS

GROUNDED
CONDUCTOR

BONDING JUMPER
SIZE PER NEC 250-66METALLIC SERVICE

RACEWAY

#4/0 GROUND CABLE
(TYP 2)

RIGID CONDUIT 90

6"

24"

4"

24"
MIN67" WHERE

LOCATED IN CLAY
OR SILT, AND
LOCATED IN

LANDSCAPING OR DIRT

3,000 PSI 28 DAY
STRENGTH CONCRETE

1" ANCHOR BOLT
(4 REQ'D) EMBED
18" BELOW GRADE

1" CHAMFER
ON ALL EDGES

SMOOTH FINISH

GROUT

18"
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ELECTRICAL DETAILS
PHASE 2

#4 RE-BAR RINGS 9" APART THROUGHOUT
WITH (2) RINGS IN TOP 4"

(6) #6 RE-BARS

(6)5"C

# CONDUITS ROWS COLUMNS
2 1 2

4 2 2

6 2 3

8 3 3

NOTES:
1. ANCHOR BOLTS SUPPLIED WITH POLE. INSTALL PER

MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.
2. BOND GROUND CONDUCTOR TO POLE.
3. SEAL CONDUIT TO PREVENT WATER INFILTRATION.
4. PROVIDE SPARE CONDUIT 36" BEYOND LAST POLE

ON CIRCUIT AND CAP FOR FUTURE EXTENSION.

1"C

ROWS

COLUMNS

1/2" REBAR
(TYPICAL FOR 4)

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE
TYPE DESCRIPTION LAMP(S) AND

BALLASTS
INPUT
(VA) VOLTAGE (V) MANUFACTURER(S) CATALOG #

SL2

DESCRIPTION: 2-HEAD POLE MOUNTED FIXTURE, TYPE II DIST. LED 404 240 USA LTG

(2) VRS
LED-II-120LED-525MA-
NW-120-1-RPA-SCBA/S
TS 30-11/4-FBA

SIZE: 24"L X 16"W 8"H 13,500 LUMENS/HEAD

LITHONIA

(2) CSX1 LED 700 40K
T2M MVOLT SPA PER
DDBXD/
STS 30 6-4B DM28
DDB/BANNER ARMS
DDB

MOUNTING: POLE MOUNTED WITH STRAIGHT ARM

HOUSING: DIE-CAST ALUMINUM W MATCHING DOOR 4100K

REFLECTOR: INJECTION - MOULDED ARCYLIC - TYPE 3 WITH SPILL LIGHT CONTROL BEGALED

LENS: FLAT TEMPERED GLASS

FINISH: DARK BRONZE POLYESTER POWDER

OTHER: FUSED, PHOTOCELL

NOTE: 30' SQUARE TAPERED STEEL DARK BRONZE POLE W/ 180 DEG FIXED BANNER
ARMS, TOP & BOTTOM FOR 4' TALL BANNERS. PROVIDE POLE BASE AS
SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS. MADE IN USA.

SL1

DESCRIPTION: SINGLE HEAD POLE MOUNTED FIXTURE, TYPE III DIST. LED 202 240 USA LTG

VRS
LED-III-120LED-525MA-
NW-120-1-RPA-SCBA

SIZE: 24"L X 16"W 8"H 13,500 LUMENS

LITHONIA

CSX1 LED 700 40K T3M
MVOLT SPA PER
DDBXD/
STS 30 6-4B DM19 DDBMOUNTING: POLE MOUNTED WITH STRAIGHT ARM

HOUSING: DIE-CAST ALUMINUM W MATCHING DOOR 4100K BEGALED

REFLECTOR: INJECTION - MOULDED ARCYLIC - TYPE 3 WITH SPILL LIGHT CONTROL

LENS: FLAT TEMPERED GLASS

FINISH: DARK BRONZE POLYESTER POWDER

OTHER: FUSED, PHOTOCELL

NOTE: 30' SQUARE TAPERED STEEL DARK BRONZE POLE,

PROVIDE POLE BASE AS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS. MADE IN USA

NOTES:

1 ALL LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM 5 YEAR WARRANTY.

2 ALL LED LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL HAVE REPLACEABLE AND UPGRADABLE LED MODULES, LM79 AND LM80 LISTED, WITH 50,000 HR MIN. L70 RATING.

3 LIGHT FIXTURE DESCRIPTION TAKES PRECEDENCE OVER CATALOG NUMBER. LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL MEET DESCRIPTION REQUIREMENTS.
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May 30, 2014 

 

Maud de Bel 

BacGen 

4015 Beach Drive SW 

Seattle, WA 98116 

 

Ref: Utah National Guard; West Jordan, Utah 

Subject: Solar Panel Roof Evaluation 

 

Ms. de Bel, 

 

In response to your request, BHB Consulting Engineers has performed a structural evaluation 

of the roof of the army aviation support facility for the addition of the proposed solar panel 

units.   

 

We were provided access to the as-built drawings of the structure by the managers of the 

facility and allowed to physically visit the building and observe that the as built structure 

appeared to be consistent with the drawings.  We were also able to obtain the roof shop 

drawings from Vulcraft by obtaining a joist tag from the project.  From these two sets of 

drawings and our observations, we were able to determine that the roof was initially 

designed for total load of 60 psf and a snow load of 31 psf.   

 

From our observations of the building, we were able to calculate the actual dead load of 

waterproofing membrane, metal roof deck, joists/girders, and mechanical equipment 

including fans and the fire suppression system to be 20 psf.  With an allowance of 3 psf for 

miscellaneous items and the 31 psf snow load, this gives an actual total load of 51 psf, 

which leaves a capacity of 9 psf.   

 

The calculations of the loads and capacity of the roof are attached, and copies of the 

drawings can be provided if necessary. 

 

From the information provided to us that the proposed solar panel systems averages 

approximately 5 psf, the roof of this building is structurally adequate to carry the added 

loads of the proposed solar panels.  The proposed locations can be seen in the attached 

aerial image. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Gerald Mckenzie, SE 

BHB Consulting Engineers, P.C. 5/30/2014



 

 

 

 

2 7 6 6  S o u t h  M a i n  S t r e e t  -  S L C ,  U t a h  8 4 1 1 5  -  P h o n e :   8 0 1 . 3 5 5 . 5 6 5 6  -  F a x :   8 0 1 . 3 5 5 . 5 9 5 0  

w w w . b h b e n g i n e e r s . c o m  

 



 

 

 

 

2 7 6 6  S o u t h  M a i n  S t r e e t  -  S L C ,  U t a h  8 4 1 1 5  -  P h o n e :   8 0 1 . 3 5 5 . 5 6 5 6  -  F a x :   8 0 1 . 3 5 5 . 5 9 5 0  

w w w . b h b e n g i n e e r s . c o m  

 






	DFCM Addenudm.pdf
	Camp Williams Infra Project.pdf
	2012-082.00 Camp Williams Utilities Phase 2 - Revised CD Set.pdf

	Camp Williams one-line.pdf
	CWil_ combined one line.pdf
	EX101A.4
	EX101B.4
	EX101C.4
	EX101D.4
	EX201A.4
	EX201B.4





